
Adopted:  February 11, 2016 – As Written 

 
CONWAY PLANNING BOARD 

 
MINUTES 

 
JANUARY 28, 2016 

 
  
  
 PAGES 
 
  1  Review and Acceptance of Minutes 

 December 10, 2015 – Adopted as Written  
 
  1  Dale Drew – Two-Lot Subdivision Review (PID 250-3.1) 
    File #S16-01 

 Withdrawn by Applicant 
 
  1  Public Hearing – Zoning Amendments Proposed by the  
    Planning Board P 
 
  5  Public Hearing – Petitioned Zoning Amendments 
 

8  Other Business 
 Balsam Ridge Lodge, LLC (PID 251-157) – 

Conditional approval expiring (File #FR12-01) 
 Dan A. Morgenstern Revocable Trust – Lot Merger 

(PID 299-65 & 66) 



Adopted:  February 11, 2016 – As Written 

CONWAY PLANNING BOARD 
 

MINUTES 
 

JANUARY 28, 2016 
 
A meeting of the Conway Planning Board was held on Thursday, January 28, 2016 beginning at 
7:00 pm at the Conway Town Office in Center Conway, NH.  Those present were:  Chair, Robert 
Drinkhall; Selectmen’s Representative, Steven Porter; Vice Chair, Steven Hartmann; Secretary, 
Kevin Flanagan; Martha Tobin; Raymond Shakir; Planning Director, Thomas Irving and 
Recording Secretary, Holly Meserve. 
 
REVIEW AND ACCEPTANCE OF MINUTES 
 
Mr. Hartmann made a motion, seconded by Mr. Porter, to approve the Minutes of 
December 10, 2015 as written.  Motion carried with Ms. Tobin abstaining from voting.  
 
DALE DREW – TWO-LOT SUBDIVISION REVIEW (PID 250-3.1) FILE #S16-01 
 
This is an application to subdivide 10.29± acres into two lots of 6.35 acres and 3.94 acres at 290 
West Side Road.  Mr. Irving stated that the applicant has withdrawn this application. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING – ZONING AMENDMENTS PROPOSED BY THE PLANNING 
BOARD 
 
§147.13.8.6.10.1; §147.13.8.6.10.1.1; and §147.13.8.6.10.1.2; §147.14.3; §147.14.3.3; 
§147.14.3.4; and §147.14.3.5; §147.15; §147.13.8.6.7; and §147.13.8.6.8:  This is a proposed 
amendment to add provisions for internal lighting; to add provisions for internal lighting 
conversions; to add the definitions of “Opaque” and “Translucent”; and signs allowed 
under §147.13.8.6.7 and §147.13.8.6.8 shall not be allowed to be illuminated. 
 
Mr. Irving stated that the proposal will allow internally lit freestanding signs and wall signs in 
the Highway Commercial District.  Mr. Drinkhall opened the public hearing at 7:03 pm.  Mr. 
Drinkhall asked for public comment; Randy Cooper asked what if the sign is grandfathered.  Mr. 
Irving stated there is a provision for non-conforming signs that it has to brought into complete 
compliance to be internally lit.  Mr. Irving read the amendment.   
 
Mark Hounsell asked if items a. through e. would be combined into one warrant article.  Mr. 
Irving answered in the affirmative and stated it could cause some unforeseen circumstances if 
any one particular piece is adopted and others are not adopted.  Mr. Hounsell stated that the 
Board needs to be sensitive to the fact that not everyone will understand the full impact; and the 
all or nothing thing makes him nervous.   
 
Mr. Cooper stated items a. through e. need to go together; it would be difficult to vote for one 
without voting for all.  Mr. Hounsell stated that he is trusting the Board to sort it out as it is 
foreign to a lot of people.  Mr. Drinkhall asked for further public comment; there was none.    



Adopted: February 11, 2016 – As Written 
CONWAY PLANNING BOARD – JANUARY 28, 2016 

 

PAGE 2 OF 8 

 

Mr. Drinkhall asked for Board comment; Mr. Hartmann asked if this amendment includes wall 
signs.  Mr. Irving answered in the affirmative and stated freestanding signs have a 15-foot height 
restriction and wall signs can be as high as 75% of the height of the wall; there is no maximum 
height or width for wall signs. 
 
Mr. Hartmann stated he remembers discussing freestanding signs, but he has a problem with wall 
signs.  After a brief discussion it was determined that the language posted did not include wall 
signs.  Mr. Drinkhall recessed the meeting at 7:20 pm to review the Minutes of when the Board 
posted this amendment for a public hearing. 
 
Mr. Drinkhall called the meeting and the public hearing back is session at 7:37 pm.  Mr. Irving 
stated the amendment should have included wall signs and the language that was posted for this 
evening’s public hearing was not the correct language.  Mr. Hartmann made a motion, 
seconded by Ms. Tobin, to hold a public hearing on §147.13.8.6.10.1; §147.13.8.6.10.1.1; 
and §147.13.8.6.10.1.2 on February 11, 2016. 
 
Mr. Drinkhall asked for public comment; Mr. Cooper suggested that the last sentence of the 
second paragraph be eliminated as it is statutorily redundant.  Mr. Irving asked if there is 
problem with it being statutorily redundant.  Mr. Cooper answered in the negative.  Mr. Irving 
stated it is very important for anyone who takes advantage of this section know this.  Carl 
Thibodeau agreed and stated he would rather see it in both locations.   
 
Mr. Hounsell asked if this pertains to soda machines.  Mr. Irving stated, under a previous 
Administration and prior to his arrival, even though technically a soda machine fits within the 
definition of a sign, the Town has not treated soda machines as signs but as display of goods.  
Mr. Shakir made a motion that we be specific and make a blanket statement they pertain 
to both freestanding and wall mounted signs.   
 
After a brief discussion, there was no second for Mr. Shakir’s motion and Ms. Tobin 
withdrew her second and Mr. Hartmann withdrew his motion from the previous motion.   
 
Mr. Shakir made a motion, seconded by Ms. Tobin, to post for a public hearing on 
February 11, 2016 items 2.a. through e. on this evening’s agenda which would include an 
amendment to §147.13.8.6.10.1.2 to change “Internal Illumination” to read “Internal 
Illumination for Freestanding and Wall Signs”.  Mr. Drinkhall asked for public comment; 
there was none.  Mr. Drinkhall closed the public comment and the public hearing at 8:02 pm.  
Motion unanimously carried. 
 
§147.13.1.6.13.1, §147.13.2.6.13.1, §147.13.3.6.13.1, §147.13.4.6.13.1, §147.13.5.6.11.1, 
§147.13.6.7.11.1, §147.13.7.6.11.1, §147.13.10.6.11.1, §147.13.11.6.11.1 and 
§147.13.12.7.13.1:  This is an amendment to require white light sources.  Mr. Irving stated 
the purpose of this amendment is to bring those district requirements into conformity with the 
Highway Commercial District.  Mr. Irving read the amendment.   
 



Adopted: February 11, 2016 – As Written 
CONWAY PLANNING BOARD – JANUARY 28, 2016 

 

PAGE 3 OF 8 

 

Mr. Irving stated it is intended to allow generally for white lighting, but not be limited to the halo 
and halogen lights.  Mr. Irving stated there are new technological changes that allows for new 
technology to be used.  Mr. Irving stated what is permitted in the Highway Commercial District 
was changed a few years ago by a petition article. 
 
Mr. Drinkhall opened the public hearing at 8:06 pm.  Mr. Drinkhall asked for Board comment; 
there was none.  Mr. Drinkhall asked for public comment; Mr. Thibodeau stated that the opening 
portion states signs not illuminated; and if the first amendment passes there would be a conflict.  
Mr. Irving stated this amendment is for every other district other than the Highway Commercial 
District.  Mr. Thibodeau stated that he still sees a conflict.   
 
Mr. Cooper stated if the first amendment is for the Highway Commercial District and this one is 
for the other Districts, then in works.  Mr. Hounsell stated he is confused by the first sentence 
and the word “within”; within the sign or within the building.  Mr. Irving answered from within 
the sign.  Mr. Thibodeau asked if the sections delineated include the Highway Commercial 
District.  Mr. Irving answered in the negative and stated this is the exact language that is 
currently in the Highway Commercial District.  Mr. Thibodeau suggested removing “signs shall 
not be illuminated from within”.  
 
Mr. Cooper stated he thinks this works with the section numbers; what could be done is indicate 
which districts it applies to within the warrant article.  Mr. Hounsell stated regulations should be 
written plain and simple for the common man on the street.   
 
Mr. Shakir asked why should there be a difference and two different regulations.  Mr. Shakir 
asked why do we have one set of rules for in-Town and one for the Highway Commercial 
District.  Mr. Irving stated this particular amendment makes them the same in every district.  Mr. 
Drinkhall closed the public hearing at 8:22 pm.   
 
Ms. Tobin made a motion, seconded by Mr. Shakir, to recommend the proposed 
amendment to §147.13.1.6.13.1, §147.13.2.6.13.1, §147.13.3.6.13.1, §147.13.4.6.13.1, 
§147.13.5.6.11.1, §147.13.6.7.11.1, §147.13.7.6.11.1, §147.13.10.6.11.1, §147.13.11.6.11.1 and 
§147.13.12.7.13.1 to the warrant as written and with the clarification that the warrant 
article language specify the districts in which it applies.  Motion unanimously carried (6-0-
0).   
 
§147.13.1.10.3, §147.13.2.10.2, §147.13.3.9.2, §147.13.4.9.2, §147.13.5.10.2, §147.13.6.11.2, 
§147.13.6.15.2, §147.13.7.10.2, §147.13.7.14.2, §147.13.8.10.2, §147.13.10.10.2, 
§147.13.11.10.2 and §147.13.12.11.2:  This is an amendment to clarify the provisions for RV 
Storage.  Mr. Irving read the current language and proposed language.  Mr. Drinkhall opened the 
public hearing at 8:23 pm.   
 
Mr. Drinkhall asked for public comment; Mr. Cooper asked if storing an RV on a vacant lot will 
not be permitted.  Mr. Irving answered in the affirmative.  Mr. Hounsell asked if someone has a 
residential lot without a house, they wouldn’t be able to store a RV on it.  Mr. Irving stated that 
is how it has been interpreted by the Town.   



Adopted: February 11, 2016 – As Written 
CONWAY PLANNING BOARD – JANUARY 28, 2016 

 

PAGE 4 OF 8 

 

Mr. Cooper stated people should know what they are voting on and this is a very subtle way of 
saying that you cannot put your RV on a vacant lot; that should be indicated.  Mr. Irving stated 
that the use table doesn’t allow for the storage of RV’s.  Mr. Hounsell stated that he agrees with 
Mr. Cooper.  After a brief discussion, it was suggested to amend the article as follows: “One (1) 
travel trailer or recreational vehicle may be stored on a lot, provided that it is accessory to a 
permitted residential use on the subject property and not utilized for dwelling purposes.  Travel 
trailers and recreational vehicles shall not be stored on vacant lots”.  Mr. Drinkhall closed the 
public hearing at 8:35 pm. 
 
Ms. Tobin made a motion, seconded by Mr. Porter, to recommend the proposed 
amendment to §147.13.1.10.3, §147.13.2.10.2, §147.13.3.9.2, §147.13.4.9.2, §147.13.5.10.2, 
§147.13.6.11.2, §147.13.6.15.2, §147.13.7.10.2, §147.13.7.14.2, §147.13.8.10.2, 
§147.13.10.10.2, §147.13.11.10.2 and §147.13.12.11.2 to the warrant as amended.  Motion 
carried with Mr. Hartmann voting in the negative (5-1-0).  
 
§147.15.126; §147.13.1.6.10.6, §147.13.2.6.10.6, §147.13.3.6.10.6, §147.13.4.6.10.6, 
§147.13.5.6.7.7, §147.13.6.7.7.7, §147.13.7.6.7.7, §147.13.8.6.7.7, §147.13.10.6.7.6, 
§147.13.11.6.7.6, and §147.13.12.7.10.6; and §147.15.97:  This is an amendment to amend 
the definition of “Window Sign”; to amend the provisions for window signs; and to amend 
the definition of “Sign Message Area”.  Mr. Irving read the amendments.   
 
Mr. Drinkhall opened the public hearing at 8:37 pm.  Mr. Drinkhall asked for public comment; 
Mr. Hounsell stated he believes this to be an overreach of government.  Mr. Thibodeau asked if 
the Town at this time has the authority to regulate signage that is not affixed to a window.  Mr. 
Irving answered in the affirmative.   
 
Mr. Thibodeau asked the purpose of the amendment.  Mr. Irving stated to determine the cut-off 
and intent of when it is a window sign or a sign within the business.  Mr. Irving stated the four-
foot mark is just a number; maybe too deep or not deep enough.  Mr. Cooper stated he thinks it 
was unintentional, but one could argue that it no longer regulates the window anymore.  Mr. 
Cooper suggested amending the article by adding “…located on or inside and within four (4) 
feet of a window…”.   
 
Mr. Hounsell stated that it doesn’t delineate whether inside or outside of the building.  Mr. 
Thibodeau stated that he thinks 4-feet is an overreach; and he doesn’t think any bureaucratic 
should be flopping around in his business other than for life safety issues.  Mr. Drinkhall closed 
the public hearing at 8:42 pm. 
 
Mr. Drinkhall made a motion, seconded by Mr. Flanagan, to recommend the proposed 
amendment to §147.15.126; §147.13.1.6.10.6, §147.13.2.6.10.6, §147.13.3.6.10.6, 
§147.13.4.6.10.6, §147.13.5.6.7.7, §147.13.6.7.7.7, §147.13.7.6.7.7, §147.13.8.6.7.7, 
§147.13.10.6.7.6, §147.13.11.6.7.6, and §147.13.12.7.10.6; and §147.15.97 to the warrant as 
amended and to incorporate into the ordinance the exhibit.  Motion carried with Mr. 
Shakir voting in the negative (5-1-0).   
 



Adopted: February 11, 2016 – As Written 
CONWAY PLANNING BOARD – JANUARY 28, 2016 

 

PAGE 5 OF 8 

 

PUBLIC HEARING – PETITIONED ZONING AMENDMENTS 
 
§147.16:  This is a petition to amend the use table to allow crematories within the 
Industrial-II District.  Mr. Irving stated currently crematories are not allowed in any district; it 
is a legal and legitimate use that should be allowed.  Mr. Drinkhall opened the public hearing at 
8:44 pm.   
 
Mr. Drinkhall asked for public comment; Mr. Hounsell stated he can see the wisdom in this and 
he thinks it is a wise article.  Mr. Thibodeau asked in which area would this be allowed.  Mr. 
Irving answered the Industrial-II District on the East Conway Road.   
 
Mr. Thibodeau asked if this type of business is not allowed anywhere else.  Mr. Irving stated it is 
not specifically listed.  Mr. Thibodeau asked if this is passed does it revoke unwritten permission 
somewhere else.  Mr. Irving stated it is not allowed anywhere else; it would require a variance.  
Mr. Thibodeau stated since it is not specifically permitted, they are prohibited.  Mr. Irving stated 
in the Town of Conway, yes.  Mr. Thibodeau stated if this passes it would allow this use in this 
zone only.  Mr. Irving answered in the affirmative.  Mr. Thibodeau stated he supports it.     
 
Mr. Cooper stated one, it would allow the use; and two, it would disallow it everywhere else.  
Mr. Drinkhall closed the public hearing at 8:48 pm.  Ms. Tobin made a motion, seconded by 
Mr. Porter, to recommend the proposed amendment to §147.16 to the warrant.  Motion 
carried with Mr. Shakir voting in the negative (5-1-0).     
 
§147.13.12.12.6.4:  This is a petition to reduce the sideline and roadway setback for resort 
hotels located in the Recreational Resort District from 1,000 feet to 100-feet.  Mr. Drinkhall 
opened the public hearing at 8:49 pm.   
 
Mr. Drinkhall asked for public comment; Mr. Thibodeau asked Mr. Irving if there is a down side 
in his opinion.  Mr. Irving stated this originally was to be associated with a golf course within the 
Residential Agricultural (RA) District.  Mr. Irving stated this was appropriate in the RA District, 
but in the Recreational Resort District it does seem to be rather excessive.   
 
Mr. Cooper stated this was put in when we were trying to develop the Presidential Golf Course 
and was put in to reassure the residential folks that we would be way away from them.  Ken 
Cargill stated if it ever arose it would require a site plan.  Mr. Thibodeau stated he would be in 
favor of this.  Mr. Drinkhall closed the public hearing at 8:54 pm. 
 
Ms. Tobin made a motion, seconded by Mr. Shakir, to recommend the proposed 
amendment to §147.13.12.12.6.4 to the warrant.  Motion carried with Mr. Flanagan voting 
in the negative and Mr. Hartmann abstaining from voting (4-1-1).   
 
§147.13.8.1.3:  This is a petition to increase the Highway Commercial District on the 
southerly side of Route 302 incorporating that area previously encumbered by the Bypass 
Corridor and the Highway Corridor Overlay District.  Randy Cooper appeared before the 
Board.     



Adopted: February 11, 2016 – As Written 
CONWAY PLANNING BOARD – JANUARY 28, 2016 

 

PAGE 6 OF 8 

 

Mr. Drinkhall opened the public hearing at 8:56 pm.  Mr. Cooper submitted materials to the 
Board (attached) and reviewed the area they are proposing to change.  Mr. Cooper read the 
Master Plan Vision for Conway.  Mr. Cooper stated the area for large commercial uses was taken 
up by the bypass or the Special Highway Overlay District, which was lifted in 2010.  Mr. Cooper 
stated the New Hampshire Department of Transportation has no intent of taking this corridor.  
Mr. Cooper stated they are asking the Town to rezone that for commercial uses; for the new 
aquatic center.   
 
Mr. Hartmann asked if there is anything to keep it from going on the other side of the road.  Mr. 
Cooper stated the area is steep.  Mr. Hartmann asked the relevance of the Aquatic Center.  Mr. 
Irving stated this amendment is to rezone the area, if it does get rezoned there are a number of 
permitted uses allowed and this is one of them.   
 
Jim Soroka, of the White Mountain Aquatic and Fitness, appeared before the Board and showed 
a map of the area in which they are interested in.  Mr. Hartmann asked if the zoning is the only 
item holding them back from that piece of property.  Mr. Soroka stated we have someone who is 
ready to purchase land for us, and one of the issues is the zoning.  Mr. Cooper stated this area in 
the Master Plan was for large commercial uses.   
 
Mr. Hounsell stated that he is not speaking for the School Board, but as a member of the School 
Board he would be eager to support this proposal; that is not a bad idea and to make it possible 
for taxable enterprises in that area is a good idea and should be supported.   
 
Mr. Irving stated he would like to make a few points; one, at the time the Master Plan was 
prepared and the commercial area delineated it was perceived that there would be a corridor; 
two, a significant portion of that area is predominately wetlands, so the development potential is 
limited for reasons other than zoning, but be careful on an amendment for a specific project, if 
that specific project does not happen and it has been rezoned any other uses permitted would be 
allowed; and three, not sure what impact there might be on traffic.   
 
Mr. Cooper stated this is a zoning change, has nothing to do with site plan review and traffic is 
discussed under Site Plan Review.  Mr. Cooper stated this is a good use of the land.  Mr. 
Hounsell stated he supports this article and trusts the site plan review process enough; there is 
potential here for us to do good things.   
 
Mr. Drinkhall asked for Board comment; Mr. Drinkhall stated by rezoning the area it opens it up 
to anything that is permitted in that zone.  Mr. Hartmann asked if there a way to get an 
exemption to zoning.  Mr. Irving answered it would be a variance.  Mr. Hartmann asked the 
criteria to grant a variance.   
 
Mr. Irving stated there is a five-part test with the most difficult test being hardship; something 
that is inherit in the land that precludes them from using the land.  Mr. Irving stated he doesn’t 
see any diminution in property values; it doesn’t contradict the spirit of the ordinance; and the 
benefit doesn’t out way any negative impacts to anyone else.   
 



Adopted: February 11, 2016 – As Written 
CONWAY PLANNING BOARD – JANUARY 28, 2016 

 

PAGE 7 OF 8 

 

Mr. Porter stated there is always a risk for anything you do; there is also a reward and he doesn’t 
think there is going to be an impact in that area.  Mr. Porter stated this area is committed to a 
commercial corridor especially with Wal-Mart.  Mr. Porter stated that he doesn’t think the 
adverse effects will outweigh the reward and the benefits would out way any negative impact; 
the Board should support this petition article.   
 
Mr. Soroka stated we were told one of the hurdles would be creating a commercial island within 
a residential area as it is looked upon dimly and almost impossible to do.  Mr. Drinkhall closed 
the public hearing at 9:23 pm. 
 
Mr. Hartmann made a motion, seconded by Mr. Shakir, to recommend the proposed 
amendment to §147.13.8.1.3 to the warrant.  Motion unanimously carried (6-0-0). 
 
Window Signs:  This is an amendment to allow window signs which are affixed to the 
interior of the window shall not cover more than 50% of any window.  Window signage 
may include one (1) internally lit sign per business.  Such internally lit window signs shall 
not exceed two (2) square feet in area and shall not be subject to any design standards.   
 
Mr. Drinkhall opened the public hearing at 9:25 pm.  Mr. Drinkhall asked for public comment; 
Mr. Hounsell stated he would like to take the Board back before the 70’s and 80’s before we had 
zoning; we needed to have zoning and planning to take care of the visual impact.  Mr. Hounsell 
stated the sign ordinance has always been such that the Town was interested in making the town 
look pristine; there was a time when the Planning Board was almost eliminated.    
 
Mr. Hounsell stated he thinks what the Board has done with the window signs is reach beyond 
the expectation of the voter as now you are looking at what is going on inside their property; the 
Board has overreached and don’t think that is what this Board is supposed to be doing and not 
what the people are expecting the Board to do.   
 
Mr. Hounsell stated what this petition article does is set a boundary, this is as far as you are 
going to go and it is not open to design standards.  Mr. Hounsell stated the Board has stepped 
into an area that is not in their purview; we do not believe that it is necessary or proper for the 
Town of Conway to be a part of the design standards within a building.  
 
Mr. Thibodeau stated he wrote the petitioned article and put in that the design standards don’t 
apply as he and Mr. Irving have a difference of opinion regarding LED; this alleviates the 
possibility of that difference occurring.  Mr. Thibodeau stated this would be about the size of two 
laptop screens.  Mr. Thibodeau stated the Sign Advisory Committee recommended this 
amendment, but the Planning Board did not support it.   
 
Mr. Drinkhall asked if this would allow strobe lights that some would find objectionable.  Mr. 
Thibodeau stated he supposed it would, but it would allow neon surface mounted LED’s; it could 
include a strobe light, though he cannot imagine anyone wanting one.  Mr. Thibodeau stated it 
would not prohibit it.  Mr. Drinkhall asked for further public comment; there was none.   
 



Adopted: February 11, 2016 – As Written 
CONWAY PLANNING BOARD – JANUARY 28, 2016 

 

PAGE 8 OF 8 

 

Mr. Drinkhall asked for Board comment; Mr. Shakir stated all he sees is what was originally 
agreed to and asked where is the objection.  Mr. Shakir stated where does it say we are 
overreaching.   
 
Mr. Hounsell stated it is an overreach of government, not saying you going in and taking stuff, 
but this is for the outside the property and not within the four walls of someone’s property.  Mr. 
Hounsell stated you have overreached what was expected when this was established; it is not the 
role of government to design within the four walls and he doesn’t see the connection with 
people’s desire for a pristine outside to reach inside.  Mr. Shakir agreed with Mr. Hounsell.  Mr. 
Drinkhall closed the public hearing at 9:37 pm. 
 
Ms. Tobin made a motion, seconded by Mr. Hartmann, to recommend the proposed 
amendment to window signs to the warrant.  Motion unanimously defeated (0-6-0).  After a 
brief discussion, Mr. Shakir stated he would like to change his vote.  Mr. Porter made a 
motion, seconded by Mr. Hartmann, to reconsider the vote on the proposed amendment to 
window signs.  Motion carried with Mr. Flanagan voting in the negative.   
 
Mr. Porter made a motion, seconded by Mr. Shakir, to recommend the proposed 
amendment to window signs to the warrant.  Motion defeated with Mr. Shakir voting in the 
affirmative and Ms. Tobin, Mr. Hartmann, Mr. Flanagan, Mr. Porter and Mr. Drinkhall 
voting in the negative (1-5-0).  
 
OTHER BUSINESS 
 
Balsam Ridge Lodge, LLC (PID 251-157) – Conditional approval expiring (File #FR12-01):  
Mr. Irving stated that the applicant has opted not to request an extension.  Mr. Porter made a 
motion, seconded by Mr. Hartmann, to deny the application of Balsam Ridge Lodge, LLC 
without prejudice for failure to meet the conditions.  Motion unanimously carried.   

 
Dan A. Morgenstern Revocable Trust – Lot Merger (PID 299-65 & 66):  Mr. Porter made a 
motion, seconded by Ms. Tobin, to approve the lot merger.  Motion unanimously carried.   
 
Meeting adjourned at 9:50 pm. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 

 
Holly L. Meserve 
Recording Secretary 
















































